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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE

CLERK, US. Di3
EASTERN DISTRICT OF VIRGINIA ALEXANDRIATe:g(TSI?@aUHT

Alexandria Division

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA Criminal No. 1:09-CR-35 g

V. Count 1: 18 U.S.C. §1343
[Wire Fraud]

Count 2: 18 U.S.C. §1l028A
[Aggravated Identity Theft]

KIL SEOK SEO,
aka MICHAEL SEO

Defendant
INDICTMENT
August 2009 Term at Alexandria
COUNT ONE

(Wire Fraud)

THE GRAND JURY CHARGES THAT AT ALL TIMES MATERIAL:
I. INTRODUCTION

1. Chevy Chase Bank, FSB, was a financial institution
within the meaning of 18 U.S.C. §20, the deposits of which were
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. Chevy
Chase Bank did business in the Eastern District of Virginia and
elsewhere as a mortgage lender.

2. The defendant herein, KIL SEOK SEQO (referred to herein
as MICHAEL SEO), was a loan broker doing business in the Eastern
District of Virginia.

3. Peter Jin was also a loan broker, who shared office
space with defendant MICHAEL SEO in Annandale, Virginia.

II. THE SCHEME AND ARTIFICE TO DEFRAUD CHEVY CHASE FEDERAL
SAVINGS BANK

4. From on or about mid to late January 2006 through on or

about early to mid February 2006, in the Eastern District of
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Virginia and elsewhere, aided and abetted by co-schemer Peter
Jin, the defendant MICHAEL SEO devised and intended to devise a
scheme and artifice to defraud Chevy Chase Federal Savings Bank
and to obtain from Chevy Chase Federal Savings Bank money and
property in the total amount of approximately $100,000, by means
of materially false and fraudulent pretenses and representations.

IITI. THE MANNER AND MEANS OF THE SCHEME AND ARTIFICE TO DEFRAUD

5. It was part of the scheme and artifice to defraud that
co-schemer Peter Jin would and did originate a home equity loan
application with Chevy Chase Federal Savings Bank in connection
with a residence located on Holtby Square in Loudoun County,
Virginia, in the name of an individual (referred to herein as
KKH) who appeared to be the owner of the residence, when in fact,
as both Peter Jin and defendant.MICHAEL SEO knew, (i) KKH had
never purchased the Holtby Square residence, (ii) was unaware of
any such loan application, and (iii) had not approved that his
name could be used to obtain such a loan.

6. In order to obtain funds for himself and co-schemer
Peter Jin, it was a further part of the scheme and artifice to
defraud that on January 28, 2006, the defendant MICHAEL SEO,
while impersonating KKH, would and did obtain from the Virginia
Department of Motor Vehicles (DMV) an identity card for himself
under the name of KKH. To verify his identity at the Virginia
DMV office, defendant SEO used a phony Fairfax County marriage
licence in the name of KKH, and (without authorization) a copy of

KKH's United States Government passport.
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7. 1In order to complete the Chevy Chase loan transaction in
the name of KKH, it was a further part of the scheme and artifice
to defraud, that on or about February 1, 2006, using the
fraudulent Virginia DMV identity card, the defendant MICHAEL SEO
impersonated KKH at a loan closing before an official of Chevy
Chase Federal Savings Bank during which time the defendant signed
pertinent documents in the name of KKH.

III. USE OF AN INTERSTATE BANK WIRE TRANSFER

8. On or about February 6, 2006, in the Eastern District of

Virginia, the defendant
MICHAEL SEO,

having devised and intending to devise the aforesaid scheme and
artifice to defraud Chevy Chase Federal Savings Bank, and aided
and abetted by Peter Jin, knowingly caused to be transmitted by
means of wire communications in interstate commerce certain
signs, signals, and sounds for the purpose of executing such
scheme and artifice to defraud, in that the defendant knowingly
caused a wire transfer of $90,902 from Chevy Chase Federal
Savings Bank in Maryland to an account in the name of KKH at
SunTrust Bank in Virginia, which funds were then used by
defendant MICHAEL SEO and co-schemer Peter Jin.

(In violation of Title 18, United States Code, §§1343 and 2).
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COUNT TWO
(Aggravated Identity Theft)

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

1. Paragraphs 1 through 7 of Count One are hereby realleged
and incorporated herein.

2. On or about January 27, 2006, in the Eastern District of
Virginia, the defendant

MICHAEL SEO

during and in relation to a felony, namely, wire fraud, 18 U.S.C.
§1343, perpetrated against Chevy Chase Federal Savings Bank,
knowingly transferred, possessed, and used, without lawful
authority a means of identification of another person, in that
the defendant SEO, using both the name of KKH and KKH’'s social
security number, caused an official of the Fairfax County Circuit
Court’s Office of Public Services to issue a marriage license in
the name of KKH and HSP, which defendant SEO then used to obtain
from the Virginia Department of Motor Vehicles an identity card
in the name of KKH, which identity card contained defendant SEO’s
picture, thereby enabling defendant SEO to impersonate KKH at the
Chevy Chase loan closing on February 1, 2006.

(In violation of Title 18, United States Code, §§1028A(a){l)& 2).
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Place of Offense: Under Seal:Yes ___ NoX  Judge Assigned: ﬁ(‘ ,(‘
City Superseding Indictment Criminal Number: ( "NG6r 36— 2.
County/Parish Fairfax Same Defendant New Defendant
Magistrate Judge Case Number Arraignment Date:
Search Warrant Case Number
R 20/R 40 from District of
Related Case Name and No:
Defendant Information:
Juvenile --Yes __No X FBI#
Defendant Name: Kil Seok Seo Alias Name(s)Michael Seo
= Fairfax, VA 22030 and
Address: Columbia, MD 21044
Employment:
Birth date__ 64 _Ss# - 0242Sex M Def Race Nationality Korean Place of Birth
Height Weight ____ Hair Eyes Scars/Tattoos

Interpreter: X No Yes List language and/or dialect:

Location Status:

Automobile Description

Arrest Date

__Already in Federal Custody as of in
___Already in State Custody ~ ___On Pretrial Release X
X_Arrest Warrant Requested ~ ___Fugitive

___Arrest Warrant Pending ___Detention Sought

Defense Counsel Information:

Name: Court Appointed
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Telephone: Public Defender
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AUSA Stephen P. Learned Telephone No:  703-299-3806
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